THE "CALL IN" PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON THURSDAY, 22 APRIL, 2010. MINUTE NOS. 120, 121, 122 AND 124 ARE NOT SUBJECT TO "CALL IN".

CABINET MEMBER - REGENERATION

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE ON WEDNESDAY 14 APRIL 2010

PRESENT: Councillor Maher

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Hough and Ibbs

117. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies for absence were received.

118. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received.

119. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2010, be confirmed as a correct record.

120. COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER - BEDFORD AND QUEENS ROAD AND KLONDYKE AREA OF BOOTLE.

The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director updating on the change of title of the Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPO's) issued for Bedford Road/Queens Road Phase 3 and Klondyke Phase 1B as part of the Housing Market Renewal Programme.

The report indicated that because the Cabinet approval to issue the CPO's was in 2009 and the date of issue of the order was in 2010 the formal name which the CPO's would be known by had now changed to the following:

- The Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council (Bedford Road/Queens Road, Bootle, Phase 3) Compulsory Purchase Order 2010; and
- The Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council (Klondyke, Bootle, Phase 1B) Compulsory Purchase Order 2010.

RESOLVED:

That Cabinet be recommended to note the report detailing changes to the titles of the Compulsory Purchase Orders.

121. ENFORCED SALES PROCEDURE AND PROPERTY AT 24 LANDER ROAD, LITHERLAND

The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director seeking approval to the new 'Enforced Sales' Procedure, and in particular to utilise this procedure in respect of a long-term empty property at 24 Lander Road, Litherland.

The report indicated that Enforced Sales was a new practice for Sefton, though it had been used by a number of Councils across the country; that it was a procedure primarily designed to enable Councils to recover outstanding debts, created by certain enforcement actions that resulted in land charges against a property; and that it also provided a method for getting long-term problematic empty properties back into use.

The report also indicated that a new Standard Operating Procedure had been produced which provided a complete description of the process and roles involved. Given that this was a new procedure, officers were to bring this to the attention of Cabinet for approval, and to avoid any future challenges from property owners on the basis that the Council had not fully considered and approved it's policy and procedures in respect of Enforced Sales.

A copy of the Standard Operating Procedure was attached as an appendix to the report.

The report concluded by detailing problems experienced by the property 24 Lander Road, Litherland, which had been vacant since 1981; and indicated that considering the length of time the property had been vacant and its condition, Enforced Sale was considered the most appropriate course of action to take.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet be recommended to:

- (1) approve the use of Enforced Sale powers and the Policy and Procedures as set out in the Guide attached to the report;
- (2) request the Council to amend the Constitution so that the Cabinet Member Regeneration had delegated powers to authorise the use of the Enforced Sales Procedure; and
- (3) approve the use of the Enforced Sales Procedure in respect of the property at 24 Lander Road, Litherland.

122. FORMER PEOPLES SHOWROOM – REPLACEMENT FOR ST JOHN AND ST JAMES CHURCH, KLONDYKE.

The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director seeking authority to:

- (i) dispose of part of the former Peoples Showroom site to the Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance, to develop a new place of worship and community facility; and
- (ii) use Housing Market Renewal funding to make a grant to the Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance towards the community and landscape elements of the building.

RESOLVED: That the Cabinet be recommended to:

- (1) approve the granting of a two year Development Lease to the Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance (referred to in the report as 'the Church') for the former Peoples Showroom building, so that the building can be refurbished to use as a place of worship and community facility;
- (2) delegate authority to the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director to agree the terms for the long-term disposal of the site to the Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance, upon successful completion of the works under the Development Lease; and
- (3) approve the contribution of £200,000 from the Housing Market Renewal Programme 2010/11 to the Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance towards the cost of refurbishing the building for community use and associated landscaping, subject to a legal obligation on the church to provide the agreed level of funding for the project.

123. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. The Public Interest Test has been applied and favours exclusion of the information from the Press and Public.

124. SOUTH SEFTON HOUSING MARKET RENEWAL – PROGRAMME OUTTURN 2009/10 AND FORWARD PROGRAMME 2010/11

The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director advising of the provisional out-turn of the South Sefton Housing Market Renewal Programme for 2009-2010 and seeking approval to the 2010-2011 programme and the Council contribution towards this.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) Cabinet be recommended to:
- (i) note the provisional expenditure and outputs achieved by the Housing Market Renewal programme during 2009-2010;
- (ii) note the HMRI allocation for 2010-11 of £9.350 million;
- (iii) note the required level of Council contribution of £2.6 million;
- (iv) subject to (iii) above, approve the Housing Market Renewal Programme for 2010-11; and
- (v) delegate the completion of the Deed of Variation in respect to the HCA Funding for 2010-11 to the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director in consultation with the Head of Corporate Legal Services; and
- (2) the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director and his Housing Market Renewal Team be thanked for their sterling efforts in managing the Housing Market Renewal Programme in 2009-10.